

*Association of
Alliance Clubs
International*



**CONSTITUTION
& BYE LAWS**

Amended upto 31st March, 2025

CONSTITUTION
INDEX

DESCRIPTION	PAGE NO.
ARTICLE I	7
Name & Registered Office	
Section I	7
Name	
Section II	7
Regd. Office	
ARTICLE II	7
Emblem of the Organization	
Section I	7
Emblem	
ARTICLE III	8
Principles	
Section I	8
Principles of the Organization	
ARTICLE IV	8
Purpose	
ARTICLE V	9
Mission Statement	
ARTICLE VI	9
Membership	
Section I	9
Section II	9
Membership of National Bodies	
Section III	9
Membership of Districts	
Section IV	10
Membership of Clubs	
Section V	10
Eligibility of Club Membership	
ARTICLE VII	10
Authority of Chartering Clubs	
ARTICLE VIII	10
Authority of Cancellation of Charter	
ARTICLE IX	10
Officers of International Board of Directors	
Section I	10
Officers	

DESCRIPTION	PAGE NO.
Section II	11
Qualifications	
Section III	11
Election of Officers	
Definition of "Block" for the post of International Vice President III	14
Definition of "Block" for the post of the International Director	14
Section IV	14
Cooling off period	
Section V	14
Vacancy	
Section VI	14
Removal	
ARTICLE X	15
The International Board of Directors	
Section I	15
Section II	15
Meetings	
Section III	15
International Convention	
Section IV	15
Delegates Entitlement	
Section V	15
Voting of Delegates	
Section VI	15
Quorum	
Section VII	15
Proxy Voting	
Section VIII	16
Bank Accounts	
Article XI	16
District Organization	
Section I	16
District Formation	
ARTICLE XII	16
Reports, Fees & Dues	
A - Reports	
B - Fees & Dues Article XIII Amendments	
ARTICLE XIII	17
Section I	17
Amending Procedure	

DESCRIPTION	PAGE NO.
BYE-LAWS	
ARTICLE I	17
Formation of an Alliance Club	
Section I	17
To organize an Alliance Club	
Section II	17
Charter Application	
Section III	17
Naming of an Alliance Club	
Section IV	17
Duties of an Alliance Club	
Section V	18
Double Membership	
Section VI	18
Types of Membership	
A - Honorary Members	
B - Life Members	
C - Active Members	
Section VII	18
Resignation/Closing of an Alliance Club	
Section VIII	19
Cancellation of Charter or Inactive Status	
Section IX	19
Club Constitution	
Section X	19
Disputes	
Section XI	19
Disciplinary Committee	
ARTICLE II	20
Formation of a District	
Section I	20
Area of District	
Section II	20
Clubs & Membership for District	
Section III	20
Districts Bifurcation / Additional District	
ARTICLE III	21
Working of Alliance Clubs District	
Section I	21
District Cabinet	
Section II	21
Meetings of the Cabinet	

DESCRIPTION	PAGE NO.
ARTICLE IV	21
District Governor	
Section I	21
Qualifications for Post of District Governor	
Section II	21
Optional Candidature for a District Governor	
Section III	22
Qualifications for Post of Vice District Governor	
ARTICLE V	22
Election Procedures	
Section I	22
For Club President	
Section II	22
For District Governor	
Section III	23
For Vice District Governor	
Section IV	23
For Multiple Council Chairman & his Election	
ARTICLE VI	25
Vacancy	
Section I	25
District Governor Vacancy	
Section II	25
Vice District Governor Vacancy	
Section III	25
District Governor/Vice District Governor of New District	
ARTICLE VII	25
International Convention	
Section I	25
Presiding	
Section II	25
Officer in-Charge	
Section III	25
Official Information	
Section IV	25
Venue	
ARTICLE VIII	26
Meetings	
Section I	26
Quorum	
Section II	26
International Board of Directors Meetings	

DESCRIPTION	PAGE NO.
Section III	26
Special or Emergency Meeting	
Section IV	26
Emergency Reforms	
ARTICLE IX	26
District Conference	
Section I	26
Adoption at District Conference	
Section II	26
Delegates at the Conference	
Section III	26
Reporting of District Conference	
ARTICLE X	27
Duties of International Officers	
Section I	27
International President	
Section II	27
International Vice President	
Section III	27
Other Officers	
3rd International Vice President	
2nd International Vice President	
1st International Vice President International President	
All International Directors	
ARTICLE XI	28
Duties of District Officers	
Section I	28
District Governor	
Section II	28
Vice District Governor	
Section III	29
Region Chairperson - Duties & Responsibilities	
Section IV	30
Zone Chairperson-Duties & Responsibilities	
Section V	30
District Cabinet Secretary/Treasurer Duties & Responsibilities	
A - Cabinet Secretary	
Duties & Responsibilities	
B - Cabinet Treasurer	
Section VI	31
Other Cabinet Members	
ARTICLE XII	31
Committee International Board of Directors	

DESCRIPTION	PAGE NO.
Section I	31
Activities & Administrative Committees	
Section II	31
Election Rule & Procedure	
Section III	32
Vacancies	
ARTICLE XIII	32
Miscellaneous	
Section I	32
Allianistic Year	
Section II	32
Ally	
Section III	32
Discipline	
Section IV	32
Constitution	
Section V	32
Legal Jurisdiction	
Section-VI	32
Administration	
Section VII	32
Accounts	
Section VIII	33
Awards & Certificates	
Section IX	33
Qualification - International Director	
Section X	33
Qualification - International Vice President III	
Section XI	34
Qualification - International Vice President II	
Section XII	35
Qualification- International Vice President I	
Section XIII	35
Qualification - International President	
AACI PLEDGE	36
AACI PRAYER	36
THE MISSION OF AACI	36
POLICY GUIDELINES	37
AMENDMENTS	38

ASSOCIATION OF ALLIANCE CLUBS INTERNATIONAL

Registered under Section 8 of Company's Act

Corporate Identity Number (CIN): U85190DL2017NPL315020

In reference to Article of Association of Alliance Clubs International - Section 40 Sub Section iv, Board of Directors of Association of Alliance Clubs International are empowered to make or formulate Internal Regulations and Policies in the Name of "Association of Alliance Club International" which are binding to all the company, if any.

This Association of Alliance Clubs International Constitution & Bye- laws and Policies are framed accordingly. It is further clarified that if the word "Alliance club International" is written anywhere, it means "Association of Alliance Club International"

CONSTITUTION & BYE-LAWS

ARTICLE-I

Name & Registered Office

Section I - Name : The Name of this organization shall be "Association of Alliance Clubs International"

Section II - Regd. Office: The Regd. Office of this organization shall be located at A-383, Sarita Vihar, New Delhi-110076, India or at such other location in NCR to be determined by the Company & International Board of Directors.

Administrative Office of the Organization shall be at : Flat No. 502, D Block, Samridhi Luxuriya Avenue, Sector-150, Sports City, Noida - 201 310, U.P.

ARTICLE-II

Emblem of the Organization

Section I : The Globe represents that it will WELCOME members from across the world with Joining Hands symbolizes that it ALLIANCES with people of Vision, Intelligence, Integrity and Empathy to serve the Humanity Worldwide.

Colours : GOLD, BLUE, RED & GREEN

Gold : Traditional colour of Strength, Courage, Prosperity and Tireless

Dedication to a Cause & Sincerity of Purpose, Liberty, Purity of mind, Heart and Love towards Fellowmen.

Blue: Represents Trust, Loyalty, Wisdom, Confidence, Stability, Faith and Openness.

Red: Represents Leadership, Will Power, Courage, Passion, Radiance and Determination.

Green: Represents Colour of Life, Renewal, Nature, Energy, Growth, Harmony, Freshness and Ambition.

ARTICLE-III

Principles

Section I : Principles of the Organization

- (I) To bring together all the resources and efforts for the betterment of humanity.
- (ii) To create a powerful bond between the nations of the world irrespective of caste, colour or creed.
- (iii) To promote the "SELF EDUCATION SYSTEM" through Fellowship and Service.
- (iv) To create the bond of mutual understanding which saves personal energy and gains social energy.
- (v) To follow the idea of "THE WORLD IS ONE BIG FAMILY".
- (vi) To foster appreciation and recognition that shall create inspiration for better performance within the organization.
- (vii) To foster fellowship as the master key to success in the organization.
- (viii) To keep in mind the fact that service to mankind is service to God.

ARTICLE-IV

Purpose

Section I : The purpose of the organization shall and hereby be

- I) To organize & charter Alliance Club throughout the World, and to recognize the activities of individual Clubs, Districts and other bodies.
- ii) To decide all Policies including Administration.
- iii) To undertake Projects for the promotion of Arts, Science, Sports, Education, Social Service & Welfare.
- iv) To establish and run various Social & Charitable Projects.

ARTICLE-V

Mission Statement

Section I : Mission Statement : The mission of Association of Alliance Clubs International is to create moments that educate, inspire, respect the volunteers to align and join hands to serve the human needs, promote understanding, goodwill, peace and harmony in the world.

Section II : History: Movement of Alliance Clubs International was started in the month of September 2008. However it was properly formulated and reorganized on March 24th 2017. All the authorized Delegates in the General Body Meeting voted to make it a Limited Company which shall function and carry our Social Services throughout the world. For this it was decided and approved in the General House by all the delegates that branches should be opened all over the world and they will function under Rules and Regulations of that country and that they maintain accounts and other records in that country as per the law of Land.

Whenever permitted under Foreign Contribution Rules & Regulations Act 2010, then of course dues can be obtained from different countries.

As per The Memorandum and Articles of Association of Association of Alliance Clubs International, there are three promoters as follows:

1. Buddaraju Thirupathi Raju
2. Kuldip Singh
3. Anup Kumar Mittal

In addition all other Directors are rotational.

All Past International Presidents from 2008 to 2017 were approved to be taken as Past International Presidents of this organization.

ARTICLE-VI

Membership

Section I : All Members of Alliance Clubs in good standing shall comprise of members of the Association, which continuously perform the obligations as per Constitution & Bye-Laws of the organization.

Section II : Membership of National Bodies : Elected International Board of Directors and All Multiples and Districts within its boundaries.

Section III : Membership of Districts : A District shall consist of all Clubs within its boundaries. The minimum member of having active status clubs required to form a District shall be 15 (Fifteen) with each club having at least 15 Minimum Members. It is advised that the Clubs should raise their Membership to minimum 15 members to run the club smoothly.

Section IV : Membership of Clubs :

Membership of Clubs shall have 3 Categories.

- A) Honorary Members
- B) Life Members
- C) Active Members

Section V : Eligibility of Club Membership : Membership in Alliance Clubs shall be acquired by invitation only. Membership shall be granted those who have attained the age of 18 years with good moral character and with good reputation in the community.

ARTICLE-VII

Authority of Chartering Clubs

The International Board of Directors shall have full power and authority to organize and charter clubs under such Rules & Regulations as it may prescribe from time to time. Individual clubs shall be considered Chartered when the Charter has been officially issued by the International Office.

ARTICLE-VIII

Authority of Cancellation of Charter

The International Board of Directors shall have the authority to cancel any Chartered Club for non-payment of dues continuously, for two years or for any other reasonable ground to be decided at the International Board of Directors meeting.

ARTICLE-IX

Officer of International Board of Directors

Section I : Officers :

The Officers of this organization shall be:

- International President
- Immediate. Past International President
- Past International Presidents
- International 1st Vice President
- International 2nd Vice President
- International 3rd Vice President
- International Secretary
- International Treasurer
- International Public Relation Officer
- International Directors (Elected/ Nominated)
- Editor
- International Advisors
- International Committee Chairpersons

Other than above appointments or nominations, no other appointment or nomination like Joint Secretary, Addl. Secretary, Addl. PRO, Addl./Joint Treasurer, Chief Advisor or any other unauthorized post in the International/ Board can be made by the International President or the International Board of Directors at any time.

All Elected/Nominated Members of the International Board are not eligible to hold any other Post in the Association of Alliance Clubs International.

Section II: Qualifications:

Each Elected or Nominated Board Member of this organization shall be an active member in good standing of any Chartered Alliance club in active status and in good standing. He/She must have served for one (1) year as District Governor/Multiple Council Chairperson in Association of Alliance Clubs International or in Lions/Rotary.

Section III: Election of Officers: The officers shall be elected as follows:

- A) International President, International Vice President I, II, III and two elected International Directors from each Multiple having 15 active Districts in good standing. Otherwise only 1 from each Multiple having 5 Districts. If the strength is less than 3 Districts in the multiple, no International Director will be elected from that Multiple.

International President can also nominate one Director from each Multiple having 10 Districts in good standing. He can also nominate 1 International Advisor, 2 International Committee Chairpersons from each Multiple having adequate strength. All Nominated Board Members will have to be approved by the International Board. All Nominated Board Members will have to pay their Nomination Charges before their Nomination. International President does not have the powers to nominate anybody to the International Board without receiving the Nomination charges. Nomination charges of International Board Elected / Nominated should be deposited in the Account of AACI. If anybody deposit in any other bank than AACI not responsible.

Further it was approved that no Member from any Club or District can be elected/nominated to any post if his Club and/or District is not in good standing i.e. having fully paid the International, Multiple, District dues & Nomination charges, and the club must have minimum 15 members.

- B) Tenure of all Elected Officers from Club President to International President shall be one year starting from 1st April every year and to retire on 31st March of the next year, which includes International President, All International Vice Presidents, Elected and nominated International Directors, International Advisors, International Committee Chairpersons, Multiple Council Chairpersons, District Governors, Vice District Governors and Club Presidents.

- C) International Directors elected by Multiple or Nominated can stand for elections, can be nominated maximum for 2 terms only.
- D) All elected Directors and nominated Directors will have voting rights.
- E) International President can only nominate 4 International Directors and 4 International Advisors.
- F) International Advisors will not have voting rights; however they can participate in discussion.
- G) International President can also appoint Committee Chairpersons for specific work/projects, who will not have voting right.
- H) Elected International Director has to take endorsement from their respective Multiple. Hence 2 Directors will be endorsed by each Multiple during Multiple Convention every year. If a Multiple have minimum 15 Districts out of which 5 shall have minimum 15 Clubs and remaining 10 or more Districts shall have more than 5 or more Clubs in good standing, otherwise that Multiple can only elect one (1) International Director.
- I) In future International President, International 1st International V. P., 2nd International V. P. and 3rd International V. P., International Directors and MCCs can only stand for endorsement/elections if their District have 15 clubs in good standing and all dues International/ Multiple/ District are cleared.
- J) Any Board Member to be nominated, elected should have 15 active clubs in his district.
- K) In India our organization will have only four Multiples North, East, South & West. Each Multiple, If qualified, will endorse two International Directors every year for the International Board.
- L) International President can nominate one (1) Director from Asia, New Zealand & Australia. One (1) International Director can be nominated from Europe and one (1) International Director from USA and Canada.
- M) Directors nominated from outside India should be living and citizen of the area from which he is being nominated and he should have in that area minimum one district in good standing (active).
- N) To avoid corrupt practices in our Organization, it is decided that voting right should be given to the Clubs/Districts having served in our organization in active position for minimum 1 year and 1 day on the date of issue of Call.
- O) No voting right should be given to the Clubs/Districts if they have not paid their Multiple/International/District dues and if they do not have 15 clubs+1 year 1 day in service.
- P) International Board also approved a policy which has been ratified by the General House that following officers of our organization must

contribute towards the administrative account of our organization before being elected/nominated to the following post This will be termed as payments/ endorsement/nomination charges.

These charges must be submitted to the Nomination Officer along with the Nomination papers in the form of Cash/DD/RTGS. No cheques are accepted These charges must be deposited by the Nominating Officer with the International Headquarters immediately. Without receiving these payments their election/nomination papers will be rejected. Further such Members will not be appointed or elected for any other post in future. These Nomination Charges are non-refundable.

*International President	Rs. 50,000/-
*Intl. 1st VP, Intl. 2nd. VP & Intl. 3rd VP	Rs.30,000/-each
*International Secretary	Rs. 25,000/-
*International Treasurer	Rs. 25,000/-
*International PRO	Rs. 25,000/-
*International Editor	Rs. 25,000/-
*International Directors (Elected/Nominated)	Rs. 25,000/- each
*International Advisors	Rs. 20,000/- each
*International Committee Chairpersons	Rs. 10,000/- each
*Multiple Council Chairpersons	Rs. 20,000/- each

Nomination Charges are non-refundable in any eventuality.

- Q) Candidature of 3rd, 2nd & 1st International Vice President will be finalized/ endorsed as per qualifications and terms laid in the constitution by the respective multiple by elections or by consensus. However it is advisable to avoid elections.
- R) It was unanimously approved that the post of 3rd Vice President will be elected from every year from eligible block and forever as under in Block System:

Blocks will be formed by the Multiples for the posts of International Vice President -III and international director. The block earmarked for the post of International Vice President-III should consist of minimum 6000 members. If any block does not contain 6000 members, the support of another block can be sought to sponsor the candidature for the post of International Vice President-III. If there is no proper understanding among blocks, each block can propose candidates for the post of International Vice President-III and get endorsement from the respective Multiple council. International Vice President-III shall be elected at the International Convention among the candidates proposed by blocks and endorsement by their respective Multiple councils.

DEFINITION OF "BLOCK" FOR THE POST OF INTERNATIONAL VICE PRESIDENT -III

1. Multiple can be divided into blocks.
2. Each block should contain 6000 members to propose a candidate for the post of International Vice President-III.
3. If a multiple does not contain 6000 members, two or more multiples having a strength of less than 6000 members can join to form a block.
4. If any multiple have 12000 members it can be divided into two blocks as per the resolution of the multiple council.
5. If any multiple have less than 12000 members and more than 6000 members it can be considered as one block.
6. The international leadership can work out understanding among the blocks. If no understanding has arrived, each block can propose one candidate for the post of International Vice President-III.

DEFINITION OF "BLOCK" FOR THE POST OF INTERNATIONAL DIRECTOR

1. Multiple can be divided into blocks as resolved by the respective multiples.
2. Each block should contain 3000 members to propose a candidate for the post of International Director.
3. If a multiple does not contain 3000 members, two or more multiples having a strength of less than 3000 members can join to form a block.

S) International Secretary and International Treasurer and International PRO have to be appointed/nominated by International President either out of the either elected Directors or nominated International Directors or from International Advisors or from International Committee Chairpersons and they will have a voting right in the International Board Meeting.

Section IV: Cooling Off Period: A District Governor after completing his tenure successfully must have a cooling off period of minimum one year before he can be a candidate for the post of International Director. However in the meantime he can serve as International Committee Chairperson, International Advisor, or Multiple Officer before he can be a candidate for the Post of International Director.

Section V: Vacancy:

- A) In the event of vacancy in any office, the International President may fill such vacancy with the majority approval of the International Board.
- B) In the event of vacancy of International President, the same shall be filled up by 1st Vice President.

Section VI :Removal: Any Officer elected in this organization may be removed from office, for any reasonable cause by 2/3rd majority of the International Board of Directors.

The nominated Officers can be removed at any time for any reasonable cause by the Nominating Authority and nomination charges shall not be refunded to such person.

ARTICLE-X

The International Board of Directors

Section I: All powers of this organization shall be rested in the International Board of Directors. They shall also have jurisdiction control of all Officers and Committees of the Board and the organization. All major decisions and policies shall be adopted in the Board of Directors meeting except financial decisions.

Section II: Meetings: The International Board of Directors shall meet quarterly except Special Board Meeting and the time gap between two International Board meetings shall not exceed 90 days.

Section III: International Convention: The International Convention of this organization shall be held each year at the time and place to be determined by the International Board of Directors. The place of the next convention should be announced at the last convention and approved by AGM. In case the International President do not give the Call prior to 60 days of Convention then the Headquarter of Association of Alliance Clubs International is authorised to organise International Convention with the majority consent of the voting members of International Board of Directors or otherwise, the International Core committee shall take the decision.

Section IV: Delegate Entitlement: Each member of a chartered club of Active status shall be entitled to attend the International Convention after paying the delegate charges.

Section V : Voting of Delegates : One representative for every 15 members or part there of each active status club shall be entitled as Delegate, who can participate in the proceedings of the convention and will be entitled to vote having paid the registration charges with one (1) year and one (1) day of service.

International President and all Ruling International Board of Directors of the organization shall be entitled to full delegate privileges including voting.

Each Past International President of the organization shall be entitled to full delegate privileges including voting.

Section VI : Quorum : 51 (Fifty one) certified delegates present in person shall constitute the quorum of the International Convention.

Section VII : Proxy Voting : Proxy voting is strictly prohibited in the International Convention.

Section VIII: Bank Accounts: All Clubs, Districts, Multiples are authorized to open separate Bank Accounts and complete all legal formalities as per the Law of Land. All branches all over the world can open accounts in their own country after registering with the competent authorities and maintain proper Books of Accounts and file Financial Reports as required by Law of their country for which they shall themselves be responsible.

ARTICLE-XI

District Organization

Section 1: District Formation: The territory of Chartered Clubs and Districts shall be divided into geographical and Multiple wise.

ARTICLE-XII

Reports, Fees & Dues

A) Reports: Each club shall report to the International Office through its District Governor, in the prescribed form, all details of its membership i.e. existing members, addition of new members, dropped members and Balance members. Details of major activities and meetings should also be reported to the International Office through District Governor in prescribed Form. Clubs in the foreign countries are required to share all details of their club activities, accounts and all other records with the Headquarters at Delhi in India.

B) Fees & Dues:

- I) For New Chartered applications, Admission charges shall be paid @Rs 100/- per member in India and/or US \$1 per member or its equivalent in the respective national currency of that country in their own country.
- II) Annual Membership Fees for India from April 1, 2022 will be Rs. 350-for old Members and Rs. 450/- for new Member. This amount is utilised for the management and functioning of our Head Quarter in our new Office. All the Teachers joining our organization in the next 3 years i.e., from 1st April 2022 up to April 1st 2025 will be charged at subsidised rate of Rs. 200/- per member per annum after which they will have to pay the standard dues. Out of this Fee Rs. 50/- will be for natural climate disaster fund and this fund will be separately accounted for by the Headquarter and if need be assistant from this fund can be given to the Clubs by the International President with the permission of International Board.

Members outside India shall be required to pay US \$5 per member or its equivalent in the respective national currency of that country in their own country. Any leader or member opening or sponsoring a club outside India will have to make sure that the payment of such clubs are collected for 3 years and further that the sponsors will be held responsible for the same. Without receiving payment from clubs abroad it is not possible to provide them all services and facilities.

These dues shall be paid in advance, by each club on or before 30th June each year and those Clubs who fail in depositing International Dues by 30th June, the International Magazine will not be sent to the members of these clubs and the same shall be continued only after receiving the payment of International Dues.

The amount of the Admissions & Annual fees payable can be changed by the International Board of Directors to be ratified in the annual convention.

Any other fees and dues can also be levied by the International Board of Directors after approval in the Board Meeting.

ARTICLE-XIII

Amendments

Section 1: Amending Procedures: The Constitution may be amended only by the International Board of Directors at the Board Meeting, to be ratified at the International Convention or the Special General Body Meeting.

BYE-LAWS

ARTICLE-I

Formation of a Alliance Club

Section 1: To organize an Alliance Club: Charter to an Alliance Club may be organized with the consent of the District Governor, and approval of the International Board of Directors. The area of the club will need to be defined and thereafter be named accordingly which may be subject to change.

Section II: Charter Application: A minimum of 15 community people may together apply for charter for a Alliance Club to the International President in the prescribed format.

Section III: Naming of an Alliance Club: The name of the Club should always be named with name of the City/Town/Village etc. based on the Area where it is located and it should not pertain to any Religion, Caste, Creed or Language. In case two clubs fall in the same area the later shall add an extra identification mark to the club name. International Board may, if required, add extra identification or change the name as per need.

Section IV : Duties of an Alliance Club : To maintain Active status of a Alliance Club, the club will be required to

- i) Follow the Constitution, Bye-Laws and the policy of the International Board of Directors.
- ii) Do regular reporting of Activities & Membership to the International Office.
- iii) Collect International & District dues and such other charges, timely from each club member and remit in time.

iv) Make efforts to settle all disputes that may arise at Club or District Level.

Section V : Double Membership : No member shall be allowed to attain membership in two Alliance Clubs at the same time, other than Honorary members.

Section VI: Types of Membership: Membership in Alliance Clubs will require approval by the Club Board of Directors & shall comprise of:-

A) Honorary Members: Such Members may not be required to pay any dues to the Club. However club will be required to pay the District & International Dues of such member.

B) Life Membership: Such Members will have to pay a onetime fee of Rs. 11,000/- from 1st April 2022 for India and its equivalent in the respective National Currency of any other country. Such Members will be known as Life Membership Fellows (i.e. LMF). The LMF Shield and Certification will only be sent by the International Headquarters after it receives 100% amount from LMF or his additional supporting leaders. It is the duty of the individual who becomes Life Members to make sure that his 100% dues are paid to the Head Quarter by him and he can take support of the supporting members directly, if he wants to take support.

International Board of Directors reserves the right to approve application of Life Membership. All Past International Presidents are however Life Members at the completion of their tenure, without having to pay fees or to get approval for the same. Life membership once paid is neither refundable nor transferable. If a Life Member of a regular club resigns from the membership of that club, he ceases to be a member of the Association and he will not have any voting right and his Life Membership paid is not refundable.

Non Members can also be made Life Members, but they will place in the Honorary Members Category.

C) Active Members: Such members are required to pay dues determined by their Club Board Members. All Alliance Club Members will also be required to work in the organization keeping in mind the principles of the organization.

Section VII: Resignation/Closing of an Alliance Club: In order to resign from the organization an Alliance Club will have to:

- i) Clear all outstanding dues of the Club.
- ii) Dispose off al Club Property (if any).
- iii) Settle all Club funds/Payments.
- iv) Return Club Charter to the International Board Office.

- v) Leave all the rights to use the emblem or name of the organization thereafter. Furthermore the International Board of Directors shall approve the Resignation only after which the club shall be declared Resigned/ Closed.

Section VIII: Cancellation of Charter or Inactive Status: The International Board of Directors, reserves all right to cancel charter or place any club in inactive status, for any reasonable reason they might observe. The same shall restrict the rights of the club till the matter be resolved and rectified.

Section IX: Club Constitution: All Clubs should follow the standard Club Constitution & Bye-Laws approved by the International Board.

Section X: Disputes: All disputes of any member including expulsion should be referred in writing to the District Governor. District Governor will within 20 days appoint any two Past District Governors for joint meeting to settle such issue within 30 days. If such issue is not settled, it should be referred to District Board or Multiple Board. However, if the disputes are not settled, it can further be referred to International Board for. Even if the disputes are not settled by the International Board, It can further be referred to the Disciplinary Committee for final settlement. No member is allowed to move the courts. if he goes to courts, he/she will be expelled from the primary membership of Association of Alliance Clubs International.

Section XI: Committees

A) Disciplinary Committee: Two Past International Presidents from two different Multiples and ruling International President will form Disciplinary Committee. The meeting shall be presided by international President. Any two member of committee can call meeting giving 3 days notice physically or virtually. Majority decision taken by the disciplinary committee will be final and the period of such committee is for 3 years only and after three years, new committee shall be formed for every 3 years with the approval of International Board.

B) Core Committee: Ruling International President, All Past International Presidents, International Vice Presidents I, II & II shall be the members of this Committee. Any 3 three members of Core Committee can call the meeting by giving 7 days clear notice. This Committee will be advisory in every respect and majority decisions shall be attended to.

If any matter is brought to the notice of this Committee and the advisory of this Committee is not acted upon, Core Committee can forward their recommendations either to the International Board or to the Disciplinary Committee.

C) International Finance Committee: This Committee will consist of Ruling International President and three Founder Past International Presidents (other than disciplinary Committee members) from different Multiples and ruling International Treasurer. The committee shall be formed for every three years. The Committee is authorised to take decisions regarding the finances of the Association. When the Bills are received for payment at International Office, these will be sent to Finance Committee through International President for verification and the bills are to be cleared in 3 days for payment and all the cheques to be signed by the ruling International President and the second signature by Past International President of other Multiple other than ruling International President's Multiple.

The Committee is also authorised to open and operate Bank Accounts with the signatures of any (2) members of this Committee. They will be called Authorised Signatories.

This Committee will be responsible for the Purchase of any item above Rs. 15,000/-. Any item to be purchased should be approved in respect to price and quality by 3 members of this committee.

All the records and accounts will be maintained in the Headquarters. Headquarter is also authorised to engage the services of paid employees, if required, in this respect.

ARTICLE-II

Formation of a District

Section I: Area of District: The International Board of Directors shall determine the area of the Clubs, that shall come together to form a District.

Section II: Clubs & Membership for District: 400 (Four Hundred) members of Active status, spread within a minimum of 20 (Twenty) active status clubs shall unite to form a District. The International Board of Directors can also approve the formation of a new District after approval at Board Meeting as well as Redistricting, Sub-districts at reduced membership/or club strength.

Section III Districts Bifurcation/Additional District: As soon as membership of a particular District may rise as to form two Districts of 225 members each and 15 clubs minimum in each District, the District can be bifurcated to create a new additional District if so desired by the existing District. However majority Cabinet Members' decision shall be required to redistrict. Full details of all Alliance Clubs shall be required to be sent to the International Board of Directors with a Redistricting proposal only after which the International Board of Directors may take action.

ARTICLE-III

Working of Alliance Clubs District

Section 1: District Cabinet: The working of an Alliance Clubs District shall be controlled by the District Governor and his Cabinet. The Cabinet shall comprise of the District Governor as Chairperson of the District. Other Cabinet Members shall be all Past District Governors, Vice District Governor 1 & Vice District Governor 2, Vice District Governor 3 (If Eligible), Cabinet Secretary, Cabinet Treasurer, Dy. Cabinet Secretary, Dy. Cabinet Treasurer, PRO, Region Chairman, Zone Chairman and other Committee Chairmen. All Cabinet members shall be elected or appointed under procedures provided in the constitution & Bye-Laws of the respective District.

Section II: Meetings of the Cabinet: Each District shall follow its constitution and convene the Cabinet Meetings of its District. The Cabinet Meetings will be required to take place at regular intervals to resolve decisions for smooth functioning of the District. A minimum of four Cabinet Meetings is recommended for the same within a Calendar year whereas the gap between two cabinet meetings shall not more than 90 days.

ARTICLE-IV

District Governor

Section 1: Qualifications for post of District Governor: As a candidate for the post of District Governor, an Alliance Club Member has to:

- i) Be currently at the post of Vice District Governor-I of his/her District
- ii) Seek endorsement from his Alliance home Club.
- iii) Be an active member of a Chartered Alliance Club also in active status.
- iv) He/She should be a Life Member.
- iv) In case of New District he/she should be Life Member.
- v) All other detailed qualification are given in the list of Qualifications attached.

Section II: Optional Candidature for a District Governor : In case the existing Vice District Governor does not file nomination for the post of District Governor or if there is vacancy in the post of Vice District Governor at the time of District Conference, any Alliance Club Member who have the qualification to contest for Vice District Governor, currently in the District Cabinet or acted in the District Cabinet for one year shall be allowed to contest as eligible candidate for the post of District Governor as per Constitution & Bye-Laws.

Section III: Qualification for Post of Vice District Governor I, II and III: As a candidate for the post of Vice District Governor, an Alliance Club Member has to:

- i) Have held the Post of President of an Alliance Club for a full tenure or major portion of the allied year, and have been a Board Member in their respective Alliance Club at least for one Allied Year.
- ii) Has served as Region Chairman/Zone Chairman/Cabinet Secretary/Cabinet Treasurer for at least one Allied year.
- iii) Be an active member of a Chartered Alliance Club also in active status currently in his/her District.
- iv) In case of New District he/she should be Life Member. Condition (1) & (ii) does not apply.
- v) He/She should be a Life Member.
- vi) For Vice District Governor III, his/her District must have 15 clubs.

ARTICLE-V

Election Procedures

Section I: For Club President: It was approved in the International Convention that for the election of Club President, each member in good standing, present in the Club Meeting, on the date of election with one year and one day service, will have a voting right.

For holding the Elections for the Club President, the Ruling President shall hold a special meeting giving a notice to all the members 15 days in advance specifying date, time and place of such meeting.

Special Meetings for the Election of the Club President should be held before last day of February each year. If the President fails to hold the said meeting before last day of February, District Governor of the District in which the Club falls is authorized to take necessary action including holding the Election Meeting in consultation with the Multiple Council Chairperson.

Section II: For District Governor: For the election of District Governor all clubs in good standing having paid International. Multiple and District Dues with one year and one day of service will have a voting right. All present & past International Presidents, and present International Board Members, Present & Past Multiple Council Chairpersons if any in the District, will have voting right in addition to their club, subject to that they are in good standing and have one year one day of service and should have served International Board post for major part of the Allied year. All ruling District Governors, Past District Governors, VDG I, II, III and District Governor must secure 50% + 1 vote in this election.

Elections for the District Governor, Vice District Governors I, II & III will be held in the Annual District Conference, The Ruling District Governor is required to give a clear notice of 30 days in advance to all the Clubs of the District specifying date, time and place of such Annual District Conference.

Election by the means of secret written ballot shall be conducted for the office of District Governor. In this ballot the candidate has to secure majority votes cast by the delegates. Elections for the office of District Governor can also be conducted in accordance with the respective District Constitution & Bye-Laws. The result of each District Governor election is to be reported to the International Office by the Ruling District Governor. The results of these Elections are to be adopted at the International Board of Directors Meeting and thereby become effective. The International Board of Directors takes into action in any case related to Protest or Complaint filed against the Election and that will be final. The International Board of Directors also reserves the right to appoint a District Governor in case of (1) non completion of election of District Governor (ii) Refusal of Candidate to the post of District Governor (iii) Death/Illness or disability any other unforeseen event occurred with the candidate for District Governor (iv) in case of New District.

Annual District Conference of each District should be held on or before the last day of March each year. If the Ruling District Governor fails to hold the said Annual District Conference before last day of March, Multiple Council Chairperson of the Multiple in which the District falls is authorised to take necessary action including either holding Annual District Conference or Nominating the Office Bearers of the District for the next year in consultation with the International President.

Section III: For Vice District Governor : Election in accordance with the constitution and Bye-Laws of the District of the candidate shall be conducted for the post of Vice District Governor. The result of each Vice District Governor election shall be reported to the International Office by the current District Governor.

Section IV: For Multiple Council Chairman: Multiple Council Chairperson has to be elected at the Multiple level only out of the ruling District Governors of the current year or Past District Governors of last 3 years by the incoming District Governors. His district should have 15 clubs in good standing, his district should have served one year one day in our organization and he should have paid the nomination charges before declaration of the election at Multiple Level. No International Board Officer present or past will have voting right for this election of Multiple Council Chairperson. However ruling Multiple Council Chairperson shall have one voting right. It was further clarified and approved by the house that International Vice President I, II and III along with International President endorsed by Multiple shall further

have to secure 50% + 1 vote from respective Multiple and at International Convention out of the delegates present in the Multiple and International Convention.

The Ruling Multiple Council Chairperson is required to give a clear notice of 15 days in advance to all the Districts of the Multiple specifying date, time and place of such Annual Multiple Convention where the next Multiple Council Chairperson is to be elected. Multiple is also required to nominate Vice Multiple Council Chairperson, Multiple Secretary, Multiple Treasurer and Multiple PRO.

All Multiple Council Chairperson must ensure that all the Annual Multiple Conventions must be completed at least 15 days before the International Convention. The place for the Annual Multiple Convention must be approved in the previous Multiple Council. If no Venue has been approved in the previous Convention, the place should be decided by the Ruling MCC with the consent of majority of Core Committee members of the Multiple taking into account that such place is connected with Air Services or Superfast Train Services.

If the Ruling Multiple Council Chairperson fails to hold the said Annual Multiple Convention in the stipulated period, International President is authorized to take necessary action including either holding Multiple Convention or Nominating the Office Bearers of the Multiple for the next year in consultation with the Core Committee.

Section V: It was discussed and approved by the General Body that the Election Procedure must be followed as explained in the Constitution for holding Annual Elections for all posts in our organization. If the Election procedure as per our constitution is not followed and adhered to and in case any complaint is received, International Board of Directors can take the decision in such cases.

Many candidates apply for various appointments during the elections and sometimes they are not qualified and even then they deposit the documents to the Nomination Committee without having paid the Nomination charges. In such cases, in future, their candidature will not be considered at all by any nomination committee for any post. Further Nomination Committee Chairpersons are warned that if they accept any nomination documents without the Nomination charges, the Nomination committee chairperson shall be responsible to deposit the Nomination charges in cash to either International Headquarters or to the Ruling Multiple Council Chairperson from his own resources as the case may. Nomination charges at all levels for the unsuccessful candidates are non-refundable, hence they will be deposited to the International Headquarters or Ruling Multiple Chairperson as the case may be..

ARTICLE-VI

Vacancy

Section 1: District Governor Vacancy: In case of vacancy in the office of District Governor, the 1st Vice District Governor shall take over the duties & responsibility of the same, until the International President take further steps for the remaining term of the District Governor.

Section II: Vice District Governor Vacancy: In case of vacancy in the office of Vice District Governor, such post shall be substituted by the District Governor under the Constitution and Bye-Laws of the District to replace the post by any other eligible candidate for the post.

Section III: District Governor/Vice District Governor of New District: District Governor & Vice District Governor of the new District shall be appointed by the International President.

ARTICLE-VII

International Convention

Section 1: Presiding: The International President shall preside over the proceedings of all the Sessions of the International Convention.

Section II: Officer in charge: The President, together with the 1st, 2nd & 3rd Vice Presidents, Secretary & Treasurer of Association of Alliance Clubs International shall be the officers in charge of the International Convention. The International President may even appoint more Chairpersons for various committees for the said Convention.

Section III: Official Information: The President will be requested to issue an official informative letter, 60 days prior to the Convention confirming the date and venue of the convention. In case International President fails to issue the Official Informative Letter, 60 days prior to the Convention then International Headquarter will issue the Official Informative Letter and will organize International Convention with the majority consent of the Voting Members of International Board of Directors.

Section IV: Venue: Venue of the Annual International Convention must be approved in the previous Annual International Convention. If no Venue has been approved in the previous Convention, the place should be decided by the International President with the consent of majority of Core Committee members of the International Board and approved by the Disciplinary Committee taking into account that such

ARTICLE-VIII

Meetings

Section I: Quorum: Eleven (11) members of the International Board of Directors shall constitute a quorum at any International Board Meeting.

Section II: International Board of Directors Meetings: After the completion of the International Convention, the International President shall conduct Preliminary Board Meeting immediately and thereafter four quarterly International Board Meetings.

Section III: Special or Emergency Meeting: The International President reserves the rights to call Special or Emergency Meeting for any such purpose. (Prior information about the same will be required to be sent to all/ Board of Directors in writing 7 days prior to the Meetings).

Section IV: Emergency Reforms: In case of any emergency or reforms, International President is entitled to call a special General Body Meeting by giving 15 days clear notice and take decision on behalf of the Board.

ARTICLE-IX

District Conference

Section 1: Adoption of District Conference: At the District Conference, the Presiding Officer and his team may take appropriate action on all matters and may adopt resolutions recommending actions by the organization in accordance with the Constitution and Bye-Laws of the Organization.

Section II: Delegate at the Conference: All Past District Governors present in the Conference shall be treated as single delegate and will be granted one vote each. Each Chartered Alliance Club in active status in the District shall be entitled to one (1) delegate and one (1) alternate authorized substitute for the said club. Each certified delegate will be entitled to cast one vote.

Section III: Reporting to District Conference: The Cabinet Secretary is responsible to forward the minutes of the District Conference within 60 days of commencement of the conference to the International Office and also to District Governor. Request for minutes of the Conference from any club of the District shall also have to be entertained. Furthermore the Cabinet Secretary, Treasurer will also be required to provide one copy of statement of Receipts & Payments Account of the allied year to the International Office, District Governor and to all club Secretaries, within 60 days after the close of the year.

ARTICLE-X

Duties of International Officers

Section I : International President: The International President shall preside over all the meetings of the International Board of Directors of Alliance Clubs International. He/She shall be in charge of proper working and administration of the organization and fulfill the duties towards the Principles of Association of Alliance Clubs International.

Section II: International Vice President: The Vice President in the absence of the President, shall be responsible for the working of the organization and will be required to perform duties on behalf of the President authoritatively.

Section III: Other Officers: The other International Board of Directors namely Secretary, Treasurer and other Chairpersons and all other Board Members, Executive Officers shall be required to perform their duties as guided and formatted to them by the International President and as per the Board Policy.

3rd International Vice President within his tenure will be in-charge of training and schooling for our organization, for which he should plan and execute with the support of other leaders for which he will be assisted by International Head Quarter.

2nd International Vice President will be in-charge of Membership Development Extension.

1st International Vice President will be in-charge of Leadership, MERLOW Training and Collection of Dues.

Ruling International President is the Chief Executive Officer of our Organization and he is responsible for Administration and he is the custodian of our constitution of our organization. He shall involve all the three International Vice Presidents of his year in different activities and utilize their services for timely collection of dues. He should also attend minimum one meeting of all the Multiples. He is also responsible for Issuing Call and conducting Annual International Convention in time, so that proper Leaders for the next year in association with International Board and other Senior Leaders/International Head Quarter are given to the Organization. He is also responsible for co-ordinating and bringing out the Newsletters in association with International Head Quarter.

All International Directors are also required to attend minimum 3 International Board Meetings along with International Advisors and Committee Chairpersons. All International Board of Directors are also expected to bring and add one District of minimum 8 clubs in their tenure (fully paid and list submitted).

All International Board Members, Council Chairpersons and District Governors are expected and required to coordinate that their own dues and dues of their clubs and district are paid in time.

All International Vice Presidents are advised to assist the International President and International Board in smooth functioning of International. They should not conduct their own program but help and assist International President to execute his programs and projects and they should work under the directions of International President, because they will be given time during their year of Presidency to execute their own projects which they can plan now.

ARTICLE-XI

Duties of District Officers

Section : District Governor : The District Governor is the Chief Administrative Officer in his/her District. He/She is required to directly supervise the Region Chairperson, Zone Chairperson, Cabinet Secretary, Cabinet Treasurer and all other such Cabinet Members as provided in the District Constitution & Bye-Laws. The District Governor is the representative of the International Board of Directors and shall work under the general supervision of the same.

As the District Governor he/she will be required to:

- i) Perform the duties as guided by the International Board of Directors.
- ii) Be the Presiding Officer over the District Cabinet Meeting, District Conference and other such District Meetings.
- iii) Promote the service activities of the organization.
- iv) Supervise the activities of all Alliance Clubs of his District.
- v) Bear in mind the principles of the organization and fulfill the same.

Section II: Vice District Governor : The Vice District Governor is the prime Administration Assistant to the District Governor of his/her District and shall be required to work under the supervision of the District Governor. Furthermore as Vice District Governor he/she will be required to:

- i) Actively participate in all District Activities & Meetings even in the absence of the District Governor.
- ii) Be familiar with all the duties of a District Governor so that in case of any vacancy in the post of District Governor he/she will be able to take charge and carry out all the activities smoothly.
- iii) Give special attention to any such project that shall be continued in the following year as well.

- iv) Supervise the District Committees as suggested by the District Governor.
- v) Perform duties as guided by the International Board of Directors.
- vi) Bear in mind the principles of the organization and fulfill the same.

Section III: Region Chairperson: Duties & Responsibilities (with Guidelines)

1. Attitude should always be Positive.
2. His/ Her duty will be to work as an assistant to District Governor and see all work given to him/her by District Governor are done in best possible manner. He/She should also supervise the District Committees as asked by District Governor
3. He/She should attend all Cabinet Meetings regularly and submit Report of Service/Fellowship activities of all clubs under his/her region.
4. He/She should always remember that he/she is a Friend, Philosopher and Guide of Clubs, Officers, Zone Chairmen & all Members of his/her region.
5. He/She shall have to link the DISTRICT with all clubs of his/her region & inform all policies of the District, information & other activities of District & International to all Clubs under his/her region through Zone Chairpersons as well as directly as & when required.
6. Try to solve all routine type of club problems at his/her level and in case of any difficulty consult the District Officers or District Governor.
7. He/She shall be responsible for timely & proper communication with Club Officers, Zone Chairpersons & District Officers.
8. He/She shall have to motivate all clubs through Zone Chairpersons and also directly as & when required to undertake good service & fellowship activities. Main emphasis should be on International President's & District Governor's Programme/Goals.
9. He/She shall hold at least bi-monthly meetings with his/her Zone Chairpersons and/or Club President/Secretary & discuss with them about the individual Club Activities, Status, Membership growth & Extension, Records & Problem if any.
10. He/She should at least once in every year visit to each club in his/her region as Region Chairperson Official visit (Before District Governor's Official Visit) which should be in addition to District Governor Official Visit.
11. He/She should induct new members of Clubs and Install Officers if requested by individual clubs.
12. He/She shall work actively with the Zone Chairpersons in strengthening clubs of the Region.

He/She hold one Regional Conference every year on the subject or Report of such Regional Conference should be properly circulated to

others in the District. Timely information of such conference should be given to all officers of clubs in the Region, Zone Chairpersons & all concerned persons.

Section IV: Zone Chairperson-Duties & Responsibilities:

1. His/Her attitude shall always be positive. He/She shall be active member in active status in his zone.
2. He/She shall attend all District Cabinet Meetings & other Officers Meetings as & when called by District Governor.
3. He/She shall attend all bi-monthly & other meetings of Region Chairperson of the region to review and analyze the status of clubs membership & extension of new clubs & other important information/ any problems of Clubs.
4. He/She shall see that all clubs in the Zone pay the District & International Dues in time & send MMA Reports regularly.
5. He/She shall visit Regular Meetings of each Club in his/her Zone, every quarter & guide for proper working and advice on weakness discovered. This visit should be in addition to the District Governor's Official Visit.
6. He/She shall guide and help clubs in organizing programmes, exchange ideas, projects, activities and different ideas for fund raising for service activities. He/She should also inform all clubs in the zone about the International & District Governor's Programme & Goals and see the best efforts are put by all clubs to achieve the same.
7. He/She shall be in regular touch with his Region Chairperson & other Leaders and understand Programmes of International Level/District Level & explain to a Club for proper working and best results.
8. He/She shall be responsible for effective communication with all clubs under his/her Zone.
9. He/She shall hold 3 meetings of District Governor's Advisory Committee every calender year and to submit Report to District Governor & International.
10. He/She shall see that all clubs under his zone have taken active part in all Regional, District & International Conventions as well as other activities. He/She shall hold every year Zonal Get-together once in a AllianisticYear

Section V: District Cabinet Secretary/Treasurer - Duties & Responsibilities: All actions & workings of Cabinet Secretary and Cabinet Treasurer should be directly under the District Governor. Both are directly being appointed by the District Governor. Main Duties & Responsibilities shall be as follows:-

A Cabinet Secretary

1. To issue Notice of District Meetings & Programmes with agenda in time & send to all concerned members. Other meetings as directed of District Governor.
2. To note all proceedings of Cabinet Meetings and prepare minutes for circulation & approval
3. To submit Secretary's Report as & when required.
4. To collect all MMA Reports of Clubs & prepare Monthly Summary Report for District Governor & other officers as & when required.
5. On completion of term to give the full charge to the Successor with all records.
6. To prepare Annual Reports of whole year working of District & circulate to Cabinet Members & all President/Secretary of Clubs in the District.
7. To keep upto date information of all Clubs, Cabinet Members, District/ International Officers & provide to member as & when required.

B. Cabinet Treasurer

1. To collect district Dues from different clubs as per rate approved by Cabinet.
2. To deposit fund in the District Bank Account as approved by the Cabinet.
3. To make payment after approval of Cabinet or other authorized body. To submit every quarter financial report of the District and such other reports/accounts as may be called & approved by the Cabinet.
4. To submit all documents & Register of Account to auditor approved by Cabinet for Audit.
5. On completion of term to give the full charge to the successor with all necessary records.

Section VI: Other Cabinet Members: All Cabinet Members of a District shall perform their duties and responsibilities given to them by their District Governor.

ARTICLE-XII

Committees International Board of Directors

Section I: Activities & Administrative Committees: All the committee Chairpersons of the International Board shall be appointed by the International President.

Section II: Election Rules and Procedure: At each Annual International Convention or 60 days prior to the convention the International President shall appoint Chairpersons for Credentials, Resolution, Nomination,

Constitution & Bye-Laws and Elections in the form of a call, who will place their reports at the said convention.

Section III: Vacancies: The International President shall have the power to fill any other vacancies as and when required in case it is vacant or otherwise.

ARTICLE-XIII

Miscellaneous

Section I : Allianistic Year: Each financial year from April to March will be called as "Allianistic Year".

Section II: Ally: All members of this organization are recommended to use "ALLY" word before their name.

Section III: Discipline: Every person must follow protocol and observe Discipline. Anyone creating violence or misbehaving shall be expelled so that harmony can be maintained in our organization. However democracy shall be maintained at all levels, but with decency and protocol.

Section IV: Constitution: Clubs, Districts and Multiples have their own Constitution. All amendments carried out by the International Board are updated from time to time. Standard Constitution for all levels is available with our Headquarter. No one is authorised to bypass or supersede the International Constitution. Wherever any clarification is required you can refer to Robert's Book of Rules for unexplained matters.

Section V: Legal Jurisdiction: Our organization shall have its Head Office at Delhi. Accordingly the Legal Jurisdiction is of Delhi Courts only.

Section VI: Administration: Administration of the organization of Association of Alliance Clubs International shall be with the elected International Board of Directors headed by International President of Association. Elected and nominated International Board of Directors shall be considered the supreme authority to take all policy decision under companies act. However any amendment regarding Financial decisions must be approved by the General Body in addition to the International Board of Directors.

Section VII : Accounts: All Clubs, Districts, Multiples along with Headquarter must maintain account books according to the law of the land and Income Tax Returns must be filed wherever required. Balance Sheets must be circulated to all members at least 15 days prior to its approval in the meetings assigned for the purpose. Accounts and the balance of money must be handed over to next year Officers within 30 days of end of the particular Allianistic year. In case of any breach of Law in this regard, the officers of that particular year will be held responsible in the year the breach has happened.

Section VIII: Awards and Certificates: No Club, District, Multiple or the International can announce or give any Award or Certificate to any Member whose Club, District or Multiple respectively is not in good standing as per the conditions laid down for good standing status. Any Leader going against this will attract disciplinary action including recovery.

Section IX: Qualification for the post of International Director: His/Her District should have minimum 15 clubs in good standing having paid International, Multiple and District dues as on the date of filing of nomination papers at MCC level. His club and District should have served our organization for one year one day on the date of filing nomination papers. He/She should have served our organization or in Lions/Rotary as DG/Multiple Council Chairperson at least for one year or major part thereof. His/Her multiple should have minimum 15 Districts in good standing out of which 5 Districts must have minimum 15 clubs and remaining at least 10 Districts must have 5 or more clubs in each District, He/ She should have paid the nomination charges at the time of filing his/her nomination papers in Multiple by DD and secure 50% + 1 vote out of the delegate present in the multiple AGM either by ballot or by voice vote.

Section X: Qualification for the post of International Vice President-III:-

- i) He/She should have served as DG or Multiple Council Chairperson in our organization or Lions/Rotary and served as International Director for two years or major part thereof. His / her club should be in good standing. His/her Multiple should have minimum 15 Districts in good standing with the minimum service of one year + one day, 5 Districts must have 15 clubs each, balance 10 Districts can have 5 or more clubs each. His/Her District should be in good standing having paid their International and Multiple dues. He/She should have paid nomination charges at the time of filing of nomination papers by DD at multiple level. He/ She must secure 50%+1 votes out of registered Delegates in the convention either by ballot or by voice votes in Multiple AGM and in International Convention.
- ii) He, in addition to the present qualifications, must take endorsement from 2 Multiples i.e one from his own Multiple and one from another Multiple from the remaining Multiples. Both the Multiples should be in good standing at the time of giving the endorsement. After getting his endorsements from the Multiples, he should present himself in the Core Committee Meeting and his approval will be finally done by the Core Committee. Without this approval, he cannot be appointed to the Post.
- iii) A candidate for the post of 3rd International President is not qualified for the Post, if there is a member from his District who is currently holding the Post of Ruling, 1st, 2nd or 3rd International President. He is qualified

only after such member has completed his tenure.

- iv) He should have attended minimum 3 International Conventions and should have also attended minimum 3 International Board Meetings of the Board of the current year or in that year in which he was the Board Member.
- v) He should have also added 5 Districts of minimum 5 clubs with 15 members each in the immediate last 2 years. These Districts and Clubs should be in good standing before the date of issue of calls for such posts. Further these clubs or District so opened by the candidate must function till he retires from the Post. In case the candidate fails to complete his responsibility and if it is brought to the notice of Core Committee of our International Headquarter, he will attract disciplinary action including his removal from post and stripping him off from all his achievements.
He is also required to contribute Rs. 1 Lakh one time for disaster relief funds, which will be seen as his outstanding contribution toward the service activities in our organization. After becoming 3rd International Vice President he should attend minimum 3 International Board Meetings, without which his candidature to the International President 2 will be viewed and Board will take the decision accordingly. 3rd International Vice President should also attend minimum one Multiple Council Meeting of other two Multiples during his tenure.
- vi) Districts added by the candidate for 3rd International Vice President should be fully paid districts with list of members submitted to the Head Quarter and they should remain in good standing and active till they retire as International President.

Section XI: Qualification for the post of International Vice President II:

- i) He/she should have served our organization as International Vice President III for one year or major part thereof. His/Her club should be in good standing. His/Her Multiple should have minimum 15 Districts in good standing with the minimum service of one year + one day, 5 District must have 15 clubs each, balance 10 District can have 5 or more clubs each. His/Her District should be in good standing having paid their International and Multiple dues. He/she should have paid nomination charges at the time of filing of nomination papers by DD at multiple level. He/ She must secure 50%+1 votes out of registered Delegates in the convention either by ballot or by voice votes in Multiple AGM and in International Convention.
- ii) He should attend minimum 3 International Board Meetings + International Convention of current year and he should also add minimum one more District of minimum 5 clubs + attend 2 meetings of other Multiple Council other than his own Multiple for his candidature to be 1st International Vice President.

- iii) Districts added by the candidate for 2nd International Vice President should be fully paid Districts with list of members submitted to the Head Quarter and they should remain in good standing and active till they retire as International President.

Section XII: Qualification for the post of International Vice President-I:

- i) He/she should have served our organization as International Vice President II for one year. He/she should have paid nomination charges at the time of filing of nomination papers at multiple level. His/her multiple should have minimum 15 District in good standing out of which minimum 5 District should have 15 clubs in good standing with one year one day service and balance 10 can have minimum 5 or more club each with one year one day service. He/She must secure 50%+1 votes out of registered delegates in the convention either by ballot or by voice votes in Multiple AGM and in International Convention.
- ii) He should have attended Minimum 3 International Conventions and should have attended minimum 3 International. Board Meetings. Vice President 1 to become International President should have added one more District to our Organization with his efforts and should have attended 2 Multiple Meetings of other than his own Multiple.
- iii) Districts added by the candidate for 1st International Vice President should be fully paid districts with list of members submitted to the Quarter and they should remain in good standing and active till they retire as International President.

Section XIII: Qualification for the post of International President :

- I) He/She should have served our organization as International Vice President I for one year. His / Her District must have at least minimum 15 clubs in good standing. His /Her Multiple must have 15 Districts in good standing out of which minimum 5 Districts should have 15 clubs in good standing with one year one day service and balance 10 can have minimum 5 or more clubs each with one year one day service. He/she should have paid nomination charges at the time of filing of nomination papers. He/She must secure 50%+1 votes out of registered delegates in the convention either by ballot or voice votes in International Convention. He/She must have added one (1) more District to our organization with his/her efforts and District should remain in good standing and active till he/she retires.
- II) He should have attended Minimum 3 International Conventions and should have attended minimum 3 International. Board Meetings. Vice President 1 to become International President should have added one more District to our Organization with his efforts and should have attended 2 Multiple Meetings of other than his own Multiple

- ii) All candidates for the post of International Director, International Vice President III & II, International Vice President I and International President shall carry the endorsement from their respective Club, District and Multiple Council, and submit the same along with nomination papers, to the nomination committee chairperson of the International Convention on or before the date of nomination, as specified in the call of International Convention issued by the International President. original documents along with the DD shall be submitted to the Nomination Committee Chairperson by the respective candidate at least 7 days before the International Convention with copy to Nomination Committee members and International President.

AACI PLEDGE

We pray to our motherland and express our dedication and spirit of service to it.

In order to enhance its fame and glory, we would perform positive acts with devotion, dedication & spirit of service. Expressing our unceasing devotion and faith in our motherland, we pledge to establish the Indian philosophy of service and fellowship for the sake of world peace

AACI PRAYER

Give us so much strength, O Lord, that the faith in our hearts never wavers. May we walk the path of goodness, and we don't make a mistake even accidentally.

Let the darkness of ignorance be away, give us the light of knowledge.

Let us be far from all bad things, however much life you give us, it be good

May we never think what we have got, but what is it that we have contributed.

Let us give the flowers of happiness to all, & everyone's lives become a garden of sweetness.

You flow the water of your compassion, and make every corner of the heart pious.

THE MISSION OF AACI

The Association of Alliance Clubs International is a Social Organization working for the mutual benefits of all, without any personal or financial rewards. Furthermore, it empowers the volunteers to serve their communities & meet other humanitarians. The AACI also encourages peace & promote International understanding.

Its main objectives are:

- ◆ To arrange social service activities which are helpful and need of the hour.
- ◆ To merge the efforts & interest of individual for the betterment of humanity.
- ◆ To promote the principles of good citizenship.
- ◆ To take an active interest in civic, cultural, social & moral welfare of the community.
- ◆ To bring together mankind to co-operate for specific purposes, be it social or charitable service i.e. Cancer Hospitals, Old Age Homes for Senior citizens & Schools.
- ◆ To create a powerful bond between the Nations of the World irrespective of the class, creed or religion.

POLICY GUIDELINES

Following policy guidelines were approved by the International Board and ratified by General Body on 24th and 25th March 2018.

- A. International Convention will be held every year in the second half of February. Accordingly Multiple Conventions and District Conventions will be advanced as per constitutional requirements.
- B. International convention will be organized and conducted by our International Headquarter with an advisory committee of all Past International Presidents and in association with ruling International President. In future one place will be added to this list by the International Convention every year.
- C. Preliminary board meeting will be held for the next year immediately at the time of International Convention. Next three board meetings will be organized by the International President and International Board, one each in different multiples and the final and fourth board meeting will be held along with International Convention at the venue of International Convention every year. Board meeting will be held at Metro city, where Airport and train services are available.
- D. It was also approved by the Board that request for collection of disaster funds can be made by the club president to his club members within his clubs, at District level the request can be made by the District Governor to his District Members, at Multiple level by the Multiple Council Chairman to the members of his Multiple and at International Board or any other International platform by the ruling International President. No other person shall send his request on these platforms, because it is misuse

of platform and bypassing the authorities. However, other member can bring this type of discussion at International Board Meeting, Multiple Meeting, District Cabinet Meeting or Club level Meeting. Any District Governor can request for financial assistant to the International President through his Multiple Council Chairman, which will be discussed in the International Board Meetings. It is requested accordingly for the future.

Amendment :

In the convention held 23 rd March 2025 at Chennai

Eligibility Criteria for International Director and International Vice President

To enhance Growth of Quality Members and to bring Quality Leaders, the criteria for eligibility of International Directors and International Third Vice President is appended as follows: -

Instead of North & South Multiple, the same shall be classified as Blocks.

North & West as a Block while South & East shall form a Block.

- A. International Director has to be get qualified with contribution of 175 LMF / SLF & with addition of around 3000 Members from the Block on a yearly basis.
- B. For International Vice President, the qualifications shall be 350 LMF/ SLF with Membership addition of 6000 in a Year.

This shall come to effect in the International Convention of 2025-26.

Regd. Office :
A-383, Sarita Vihar
New Delhi - 110076, India



Administrative Office :
Flat No. 502, D Block, Samridhi Luxuriya Avenue,
Sector-150, Sports City, Noida - 201 310, U.P.